
 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF CORONA 

REDUNDANT WIRELESS CONNECTION FROM DWP TO CITY HALL 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 17-016CG 

ADDENDUM No. 1 

 

October 27, 2016 

 
Administrative Services Department - Purchasing Division Contact: Carlos Garcia 

400 S. Vicentia Ave., Ste. 320 Carlos.Garcia@ci.corona.us.gov 

Corona, CA 92882 Telephone: (951) 279-3567 
 

 

Addendum No. 1 to Redundant Wireless Connection from DWP to City Hall, RFP 17-016CG 

is issued to clarify the desired bandwidth in the Scope of Work and respond to “Requests for 

Information” as submitted by contractors via written requests and during the pre-proposal 

meeting.  

 

By this reference, all provisions and attachments to this Addendum No. 1 are hereby incorporated 

into RFP 17-016CG. Prospective contractors shall account for all provisions pursuant to this 

Addendum No. 1 in submitting their proposal. Each contractor shall acknowledge receipt of 

this Addendum No. 1 in their proposal in the spaces provided therein. 

 
 

 

1. Questions and Answers: 

 

1.01 Question:  

“Would the City accept a General Contractor License in Lieu of the C7 license 

for bid submittal with the C7 license to be in effect prior to work start?” 

 

Answer:  

No. The contractor must hold a Contractor’s State License Board C-7 license 

prior to the proposal submittal deadline.   

 

1.02 Question:  

If not, would the City accept a subcontractor who has a C7 license to be onsite 

supervising the installation? 
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Answer: 

No, the prime contractor must be the license holder.  

 

1.03 Question:  

“The RFP states that the desired bandwidth for the link is 12 GB.  Yet, at the job 

walk, there was discussion of taking a 10 GB solution.  What is the minimum 

bandwidth that the City will accept?  If the City will be receptive to a bid for 

less than 12 GB, should not the verbiage in the RFP be amended to state the 

bandwidth expected from the bidders?”   

 

Answer: 

The City desires a 10 Gbps solution. Please see Exhibit 1, attached hereto, that 

clarifies this requirement in Section IV. Scope of Work in the RFP.  

 

1.04 Question:  

“From the radios to the switch, does the City want fiber or copper?” 

 

Answer: 

The City requires single-mode fiber. 

 

1.05 Question:  

“What is the desired theoretical availability the City wants for this connection?” 

 

Answer: 

We want the circuit to be available 100 percent of the time as it will be relied on 

as a backup circuit to our fiber circuit. 

 

1.06 Question:  

“Must the bidder include a software model to support the purported 

availability?” 

 

Answer: 

No. 

 

1.07 Question: 

“On page 2 of 3 from the Scope of Work, the City has stated in paragraph 7 that 

the connection must be FCC licensed? At the job walk there was some 



 

 

 

 

discussion that the connection did not have to be licensed.  Does paragraph 7 

prevail?”  

 

Answer: 

Provide Federal Communications Commission (FCC) licensing on behalf of the 

City of Corona per the Scope of Work in the RFP. 

 

1.08 Question: 

“Are the bidders required to submit, with their bid response, a document 

showing the proposed location for the antennas and the mounting structures at 

both sites?”   

 

Answer: 

Contractors are required to submit documentation with structural calculations 

for antenna locations and mounting structures at both sites. 

 

1.09 Question: 

“What is the number of 10 GB ports that the switches will have at both sites to 

accommodate the radios?” 

   

Answer: 

As many as required. The City is refreshing the switching equipment at these 

locations and expects the 10 Gbps ports will be available by January 2017. The 

City and vendor will collaborate to test the performance of the link. 

 

1.10 Question: 

“Does the cable at the either site need to be plenum rated?” 

   

Answer: 

No. Plenum rating is not required because the pathway is in conduit. 

 

1.11 Question: 

“What Ethernet test standard will be acceptable for 10gb/s testing? And are we 

testing the radios independently or from the switch as a full system?”   

 

Answer: 

10 Gigabit Ethernet (10GbE) as defined by the IEEE in its 802.3ae specification. 

The testing is to be tested as a full system. 

 



 

 

 

 

1.12 Question: 

“Is there a minimum single stream bandwidth need for the applications the City 

is running?” 

 

Answer: 

The City needs a 10 Gbps bandwidth stream that will be used as our backup link 

for our 10 Gbps fiber data network. 

 

1.13 Question: 

“Will failover testing be done after hours?” 

 

Answer: 

Yes. 

 

1.14 Question: 

Will there be assistance or cost with any permitting with the City? 

 

Answer: 

The City will not require permitting for this project.  

 

1.15 Question: 

Can any of the grounding points available be used? 

 

Answer: 

Yes. 

 

1.16 Question: 

How does the City want the dish on the DWP building mounted? 

 

Answer: 

Free mounted or mounted on the edge of the building.  

 

1.17 Question: 

Are there any restrictions for the placement of the dish at either the City Hall of 

DWP building? 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Answer: 

The antenna shall not be excess of one meter (3.65 feet) in diameter. 

The antenna shall be screened from ground view by a parapet or similar type of 

screening. 

The mount must meet current California wind load specifications. 

The antenna placement must not interfere with existing equipment on the roof. 

The mounts cannot penetrate the roof. 

 

1.18 Question: 

“Is it still correct that the prime contractor must have attended the mandatory 

pre-proposal meeting held at both locations?”   

 

Answer: 

Yes, the primary contractor must have attended both sites at the pre-proposal 

meeting per Section II.A. “RFP Instructions” in the RFP document.  

 

1.19 Question: 

“Is Suite 215 the correct location for the Purchasing Division?” 

 

Answer: 

The Purchasing Division has moved to Suite 320. The Purchasing Division is 

located at 400 S. Vicentia Ave. Suite 320, Corona, CA 92882.      

  

2. City Contract Document Modifications/Clarifications 

 

2.01 Section IV. Scope of Work of the RFP shall be deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with the “Revised Scope of Work”, attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  Please 

note the Revised Scope of Work corrects the bandwidth desired by the City.  

 

Thank you, 

 

Carlos Garcia 

Purchasing Specialist II 

City of Corona 

Administrative Services Department, Purchasing Division 

400 S. Vicentia Ave., Suite 320 

Corona, CA  92882 

951-279-3567 

Carlos.Garcia@ci.corona.ca.us.  
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Exhibit 1 

 

SECTION IV. 

 

REVISED SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Purpose and Background: 

The City of Corona is requesting proposals to design, build and configure a 10 Gbps microwave 

link between two City facilities located at 755 Public Safety Way and 400 S. Vicentia Ave. The 

purpose of this link is to provide a redundant backhaul path between the two locations using 

dissimilar media and paths. This path will be used as a conduit to connect the City’s Ethernet 

data network. 

 

The City of Corona has a 10 Gbps fiber optic connection that connects the City’s Corporation 

Yard to City Hall and a 236 Mbps, two hop redundant microwave link between the Corona 

Police Department and City Hall.  

 

Scope of Work: 

Provide a reliable, long-term, high-speed wireless point-to-point Ethernet bridge/wireless 

backhaul connection between the City Hall and Corporation Yard. The desired bandwidth is 10 

Gbps.  

 

The addresses for the two locations are: 

 

City Hall 

400 S. Vicentia Avenue 

Corona, CA 92882 

 

City of Corona 

Corporation Yard 

Department of Water and Power 

755 Public Safety Way 

Corona, CA 92880 

 

Work Hours: 

Work hours for the project will be from Monday through Thursday, from 8 am to 5 pm. 

 

Contractor Responsibilities: 

The successful contractor shall be responsible for: 

 

1. Holding a current and valid C-7 Low Voltage Systems contractor’s license issued by the 

California Contractor’s State License Board at time of the proposal submittal and 

throughout the duration of the contract. 

2. Installing the necessary equipment using property safety practices and supplying all 

personal protective equipment (PPE) and wearing PPE at all times. 

3. Designing a 10 GB wireless connection between the City Hall and Corporation Yard. 



 

 

 

 

4. Assessing the topology and developing the best method of connection between the two 

City buildings. 

5. Providing calculations and plans signed by a licensed, structural engineer for the project 

design, for any antennas or ancillary equipment to be installed on existing 

communication towers. 

6. Supplying and installing hardware based upon the specifications listed in this scope of 

work. 

7. Provide Federal Communications Commission (FCC) licensing on behalf of the City of 

Corona. 

8. Alignment and successful testing. 

9. Providing a one-year warranty for parts and service. 

10. Providing pricing for an optional five-year service agreement for same day or next day 

repairs if failures occur. 

11. Provide as built drawings in electronic format (Visio). 

12. Completion of work within 45 calendar days from the notice to proceed. 

 

City Responsibilities: 

1. Approving the design and overall work plan. 

2. Providing access to the contractor to buildings and facilities at each site. 

3. The City will supply all switches/routers with adequate ports to accommodate the 

bandwidth. 

4. Assisting the contractor in obtaining the MCUP (Minor Conditional Use Permit). 

 

 


